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Factual Basis for Guilty Plea 

Defendant Keith Alan Seguin has agreed to plead guilty to Count Two of the Indictment, which 

charges Conspiracy to Commit Wire Fraud, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1343 and 1349; and Count One 

of an Information that charges Fraud and False Statements, in violation of 26 U.S.C. § 7206(1). 

Defendant's attorneys have explained all of the elements of these two Offenses to Defendant. If Defendant 

pleaded not guilty or persisted in a plea of not guilty, the Government would have to prove each and every 

element of the Offense to the unanimous satisfaction ofajury beyond a reasonable doubt. 

STATEMENT OF FACTS for COUNT TWO of the INDICTMENT 

The following Statement of Facts is incorporated by reference as part of the Plea Agreement 

between Defendant and the United States, and they hereby agree and stipulate that the following 

information is true and accurate. Defendant acknowledges that, had this matter proceeded to trial, the 

United States would have proven beyond a reasonable doubt the facts set forth below and in the 

Indictment: 

Overview 

Beginning in 2007 and continuing into 2018, as a part of a conspiracy and scheme to 
fix government contracts, to eliminate competition in contracting, to frustrate and defeat 
government contracting procedures, and to defraud and steal money from the government, Co- 

Defendant David J. Bolduc, Jr. ("Bolduc"), his company, Co-Defendant QuantaDyn 
Corporation ("QuantaDyn"), and others paid $2,375,725.26 in bribes to Defendant Keith Alan 
Seguin ("Seguin"), an Air Force civilian employee of the 502 Trainer Development Squadron 
("Randolph Trainer Development" or "RTD") at Randolph Air Force Base near San Antonio, 
Texas, in return for Seguin's influence in obtaining government contracts and subcontracts for 
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QuantaDyn, his facilitation of the contract fixing conspiracy and scheme described herein, and 
his allowing and colluding in the fraud against the United States. 

During the QuantaDyn - Seguin relationship, QuantaDyn grew from five or six 
employees to more than fifty employees, and its revenues grew from less than $4 million per 
year to more than $20 million per year. Seguin used his influence as an Air Force employee 
to fix the award amounts and winners of federal contracts, to corrupt contracting processes, 
and to defraud the Air Force, General Services Administration (GSA), and companies 
competing for government contracts. Bolduc, QuantaDyn, and Seguin disguised and 
concealed millions in crime proceeds and profits with financial transactions that made the 
proceeds of graft appear to be legitimate revenue. 

Relevant United States Government Agencies 

The Air Force is the aerial and space warfare branch of the United States armed forces. 
It is part of the executive branch of the government, within the Department of the Air Force 
and Department of Defense ("DoD"). 

The General Services Administration ("GSA") is an agency within the executive 
branch of the United States government. It acquires property and services for other 
government agencies. 

The 502 Trainer Development Squadron ("Randolph Trainer Development" or "RTD") 
is an Air Force unit located at Randolph Air Force Base in the Western District of Texas. RID 
procures and maintains simulator training systems, such as flight simulators, for Department 
of Defense agencies. It also assists with procuring simulator technology for authorized foreign 
militaries. RTD uses government contracts managed by GSA to acquire the technology and 
services that RID provides. 

Procurement Process 

Agencies often pay for goods and services, including the ones that RID procures for 
them, using a Military Interdepartmental Purchase Request ("MIPR"). A MIPR is a method 
for one military organization to transfer funds to another. 

GSA establishes standing contracts called "multiple award schedules" through which 
contractors supply goods and service at prices pre-determined by GSA to be fair and 
reasonable. Once a contractor receives a multiple award schedule, it is eligible to compete with 
other schedule holders for "orders" placed by government agencies. When awarding a 
particular order, GSA selects the schedule holder that offers the best value to the government; 
in other words, the schedule holder with the optimal price and the most capability. A schedule 
holder must certify annually that it determined the pricing of delivery orders, task orders, and 
modules independently and without intent to restrict competition. 

Contracting Officers ("COs") are government employees authorized by law to bind the 
government to contracts. COs rely on client agencies for assistance with a variety of functions. 
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They include, among other things, estimating contract costs for comparison to proposals and 
quotes; critiquing contractor proposals and quotes; defining criteria for contractor selection; 
and monitoring contractor performance, verifying contractor invoices, and recommending 
modifications and amendments to contracts. 

In order to provide that assistance, client agencies typically appoint one of their 
employees to serve as the Contracting Officer's Representative ("COR") on individual 
contracts. A COR is an individual, including a Contracting Officer's Technical Representative 
("COTR"), designated to perform specific technical or administrative functions. CORs do not 
have authority to bind the government contractually. 

An Independent Government Cost Estimate ("IGCE") is the government's own 
estimate of the cost that a contractor may incur in providing services and products to achieve 
the Government's objectives. The IGCE serves as a basis for reserving funds during acquisition 
planning; provides a basis for evaluating costs or prices proposed by a potential contractor; 
and serves as an objective basis for determining price reasonableness in cases where multiple 
contractors respond to a solicitation. The IGCE, including any supporting work sheets, are 
confidential. The government may not provide them or the information they contain to a 
potential contractor before the potential contractor prepares a proposal, or while it is preparing 
one. 

The government is entitled to receive quality supplies and services at fair prices. Under 
normal market conditions, competing offers ensure that adequate value is received. The CO 
relies on the IGCE in determining the government's acquisition strategy and an estimated cost 
for the proposed effort. 

Defendant Seguin 

Defendant Keith Alan Seguin was a civilian Air Force employee at RTD from March 
1989 through July 8,2017. At RTD, Seguin was involved in the development and manufacture 
of simulators, primarily for aircraft and close-air-support training. He had authority to solicit 
and accept orders for simulator technology and support, and to promote and manage related 
contracts for the benefit of the United States. 

RTD routinely appointed Seguin as the COR on contracts. By virtue of his positions as 
an Air Force employee and a COR, Seguin was a fiduciary of the United States. He was 
obligated to be honest and loyal, to safeguard Air Force property, and to disclose all facts that 
the Air Force was entitled to know. 

Simulation Fabrication Products was an assumed name that Seguin created in 2007. In 
2008, Seguin formed Simulation Products LLC, a Texas limited liability company. In 2014, 
Seguin filed an assumed name document for Simulation Products in Coma! County, Texas. 

Epic 1 Engineering Services was an assumed name that Seguin created in 2014. In 
February 2015, Seguin created Epici Engineering Service, LLC, a Texas limited liability 
company. 
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Co-Defendant QuantaDyn Corporation 

Co-Defendant, QuantaDyn, which was established and organized in November 2000 
as a Virginia stock corporation, is a software engineering company that worked on RTD 
simulator projects. QuantaDyn was a prime contractor on smaller RTD contracts, but it earned 
most of its revenue as a subcontractor on larger RTD contracts. From 2008 through 2013, 
QuantaDyn had gross revenue of less than $4 million per year. Between 2013 and 2018, 
QuantaDyn's gross revenue grew to more than $20 million per year. 

Co-Defendant Bolduc 

Co-Defendant David Joseph Bolduc, Jr. was an owner and the Director of Operations 
at QuantaDyn. He was also a close friend of Keith Seguin. Beginning in 2014 and continuing 
through July 2017, Bolduc served as QuantaDyn's Chief Executive Officer (CEO). According 
to email records, Bolduc and other QuantaDyn employees have communicated with Seguin via 
email since approximately September 2006. 

Co-Defendant Fiuza Lima 

Co-Defendant Rubens Wilson Fiuza Lima, a friend of Keith Seguin, resided in Georgia 
until 2012, when Seguin arranged a job for Fiuza Lima in Texas with a subcontractor on an 
RTD contract. Fiuza Lima formed Impex Import Export Inc. ("Impex") under an assumed 
name in 2010 and incorporated it in Georgia in 2012 as Impex Import Export LLC. 

Prime Contractors A and B 

Prime Contractor A was a prime contractor on RTD contracts, task orders, delivery 
orders, and modules. In November 2012, Prime Contractor B acquired Prime Contractor A and 
changed its name. Prime Contractor A and Prime Contractor B routinely subcontracted work 
on RTD orders to QuantaDyn. 

Government Contracts 

The July 20, 2007 Boom Simulator (BOWST/BOSS) contract was awarded to 
QuantaDyn. Its purpose was to deliver simulators capable of training Air Force personnel in 
aerial refueling operations. (The "boom" is an extendable arm on the underside of a tanker 
aircraft that crew members use for transferring fuel to another aircraft.) Overtime, the contract 
amount increased to $4,300,084, and the period of performance was from July 20, 2007 until 
September 30, 2010. 

The December 15, 2009 Crew Resource Management Trainer contract ("CRMT 
contract") was a modification/increase to an existing delivery order contract held by Prime 
Contractor A. It included an RTD order of$I,471,630 for flight-simulator software and testing 
for trainers for KC-135R tanker aircraft and C-130 H2/J military transport aircraft. Prime 
Contractor A subcontracted the work to QuantaDyn at Seguin's request. 
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The Trainer Development IT contract ("TDIT contract") consisted of multiple task 
delivery orders and was held by Prime Contractor A. From May 2011 through June 2015, RTD 
ordered $13,224,165 in goods and service from Prime Contractor A through the TDIT contract. 
Prime Contractor A paid QuantaDyn approximately $8 million as a subcontractor. 

GSA awarded the September 17, 2013, $413,395,584 Trainer Development I contract 
("TD-1 contract") to Prime Contractor B at RID and Seguin's request. Prime Contractor B 
subcontracted some of the work under the ID-i contract to QuantaDyn. As of June 2019, GSA 
had paid $440,286,313 to Prime Contractor B. As of March 2019, Prime Contractor B had paid 
QuantaDyn $99,734,406. 

Summary of the Conspiracy 

Beginning in 2006 and continuing until 2018, in the Western District of Texas and 
elsewhere, Seguin conspired and agreed with QuantaDyn, Bolduc, Fiuza Lima, and others, in 
violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1349, to commit an offense against the United States, specifically wire 
fraud, a violation of 18 U.S.C. §1343. Seguin, QuantaDyn, Bolduc, and Fiuza Lima ("the 
Conspirators") agreed that, having devised a scheme and artifice to defraud the United States 
and to obtain money and property by way of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations 
and promises, they would, with intent to defraud, transmit and cause to be transmitted 
electronically in interstate and foreign commerce certain information for the purpose of 
executing their scheme and artifice. 

The purpose of the conspiracy was to enrich the Conspirators at the expense of the 
military agencies that obtained simulator technology and services through RID. In return for 
bribes from QuantaDyn, Seguin used his influence to persuade Prime Contractor A and later 
Prime Contractor B to award subcontracts worth tens of millions of dollars to QuantaDyn. As 
a reward for their preferential treatment of QuantaDyn, Prime Contractor A and Prime 
Contractor B received contracts from which they earned substantial profits even though they 
provided virtually no goods or services. An essential element of this scheme was the 
subversion of legally required government contracting procedures that were designed to ensure 
that the government would receive quality supplies and services at fair prices. 

Seguin illegally leaked confidential competitor proposals to Prime Contractor B in 
order to ensure that it would receive the prime contract and be in a position to subcontract the 
work to QuantaDyn. And Seguin illegally leaked confidential government budget information 
to Prime Contractors A and B, and QuantaDyn which enabled them to maximize their profits 
at the expense of the government. Seguin divulged confidential RID and GSA contracting 
information to employees of the prime contractors and to Bolduc and others at QuantaDyn; 
fraudulently inflated independent government cost estimates; helped employees of the prime 
contractors to contrive fraudulent quotes to GSA that were roughly equal to the GSAIRTD 
budget amounts, rather than formulating honest quotes based on real labor hours, costs, and 
profit; and helped employees of the prime contractors to fabricate artificial labor hours, costs, 
and profit to approximate the GSA/RID budgets that Seguin had improperly disclosed. 

QuantaDyn, in return for the tens of millions of dollars that it received through this 
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arrangement, paid Seguin roughly $2.3 million in bribes during the course of the conspiracy. 
Bolduc, acting on behalf of Quantadyn, personally signed QuantaDyn checks for most of the 
bribes, and Fiuza Lima assisted Seguin and Bolduc by laundering some of the money. 

Meanwhile, QuantaDyn and Bolduc submitted quotes and claims to the prime 
contractors that were inflated by the bribes QuantaDyn paid Seguin. The employees of the 
prime contractors incorporated QuantaDyn's inflated quotes and claims into the prime 
contractors' quotes and claims to GSA/RTD. Seguin, as RTD contract manager and as a GSA 
COR, recommended approval of the prime contractors' proposals, quotes, claims and invoices, 
causing GSA to pay the inflated claims. 

Bribes to Defendant Seguin 

Bolduc, on behalf of QuantaDyn, paid or caused others to pay 47 separate bribes to 
Seguin between December 2007 and September 2016. The total amount of the bribes was 
$2,375,725.26. With only four exceptions, Bolduc paid the bribes with QuantaDyn checks, 
which he signed personally. (Bolduc arranged for another individual to pay the first four bribes 
through that individual's company.) 

In order to disguise the bribes as legitimate payments for goods and services, Bolduc 
and Seguin agreed that the payments would go to companies rather than Seguin personally. 
The only exception was two payments in May and June 2008, while Seguin was going through 
a divorce, that were made directly to Seguin. Fiuza Lima owned and controlled one of the 
companies Impex, Inc. Seguin owned and controlled the other three Simulation Fabrication 
Products, Simulation Products, and Epic I Engineering. 

The following is a list of the bribes that Bolduc paid or directed others to pay to Seguin: 

Date Payee 

12/10/2007 Simulation Fabrication 
Products 

01/26/2008 Simulation Fabrication 
Products 

05/31/2008 Keith Seguin 

06/05/2008 Keith Seguin 

07/19/2010 Impex, Inc. 

07/28/2010 Impex, Inc. 

09/09/20 10 Impex, Inc. 

10/25/2010 Impex, Inc. 

12/06/20 10 Impex, Inc. 

12/i 5/2010 Impex, Inc. 
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$9,000.00 

$31,805.44 

$32,084.03 

$32,084.03 

$47,933.76 

$50,929.62 

$62,913.06 

$59,917.20 

$62,913.06 

$50,929.62 
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Date Payee Amount 

06/21/2011 Simulation Products $30,000.00 

06/28/2011 Simulation Products $30,000.00 

09/15/2011 Simulation Products $15,000.00 

11/16/2011 Simulation Products $15,000.00 

03/20/2012 Simulation Products $45,000.00 

04/02/2012 Simulation Products $27,000.00 

04/27/20 12 Simulation Products $15,000.00 

05/07/2012 Simulation Products $15,000.00 

05/16/2012 Simulation Products $45,000.00 

06/11/2012 Simulation Products $37,500.00 

08/21/2012 Simulation Products $25,000.00 

10/30/2012 Simulation Products $28,000.00 

02/08/2013 Simulation Products $23,000.00 

04/01/2013 Simulation Products $28,000.00 

04/23/2013 Simulation Products $40,000.00 

05/20/2013 Simulation Products $44,000.00 

05/28/2013 Simulation Products $40,000.00 

06/26/2013 Simulation Products $56,000.00 

06/26/20 13 Simulation Products $60,000.00 

07/26/2013 Simulation Products $61,509.44 

02/28/2014 Simulation Products $60,000.00 

03/02/2014 Simulation Products $60,000.00 

05/07/2014 Simulation Products $40,000.00 

06/23/2014 Simulation Products $40,000.00 

11/28/2014 Epic 1 Engineering $200,000.00 

02/17/20 15 Simulation Products $25,000.00 

05/11/2015 Epic I Engineering $40,000.00 

08/18/2015 Epic I Engineering $59,435.00 

09/15/2015 Epic 1 Engineering $59,435.00 

10/06/2015 Epic 1 Engineering $59,435.00 
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Payee Amount 

10/08/2015 Epic I Engineering $59,435.00 

11/02/2015 Epic I Engineering $59,435.00 

12/18/2015 Epic 1 Engineering $59,435.00 

02/08/2016 Epic I Engineering $59,435.00 

03/08/2016 Epic 1 Engineering $209,746.00 

05/02/2016 Epic 1 Engineering $104,980.00 

07/13/20 16 Epic 1 Engineering $59,435.00 

BOWSTIBOSS Contract and Simulation Fabrication Products 

On May 17, 2007, in connection with the BOWST/BOSS contract, Seguin 
acknowledged in writing his duty to report any real, apparent, possible, or potential conflicts 
of interest to the government. Between May 17, 2007 and July 6, 2007, as a member of the 
BOWST/BOSS source selection committee, Seguin reviewed the BOWST/BOSS contract 
proposals and rated QuantaDyn's proposal as "meets" and "exceeds" the requirements. 
QuantaDyn received the contract on July 20, 2007. 

On July 13, 2007, Seguin established Simulation Fabrication Products, an assumed 
name, in Comal County, Texas. In August and September 2007, Bolduc, another QuantaDyn 
employee, Seguin, and a Tampa, Florida subcontractor to QuantaDyn on the BOWST/BOSS 
contract made plans for Simulation Fabrication Products to receive more than $100,000 from 
QuantaDyn. They created a purported contract between QuantaDyn and the Tampa company, 
under which QuantaDyn would pay $115,500 to the Tampa company; it would keep only 
$10,500; and it would pay the remaining $105,000 to Simulation Fabrication Products. 

In furtherance of the scheme and conspiracy, on October 14, 2007 the Tampa company 
sent and caused to be sent, by email from Florida to Texas, a purchase order in the amount of 
$105,000 to Seguin and Simulation Fabrication Products. Seguin's emails and financial 
records do not reflect that Seguin or anyone purporting to work for Simulation Fabrication 
Products performed actual work for the Tampa company or spent money on any materials, 
labor, or travel related to the Tampa company. Additionally, QuantaDyn is not aware of any 
evidence that would support the matters described in the Simulation Fabrication Products 
invoices. 

Between August 1, 2007 and December 
to the DoD for work purportedly performed 
December 12, 2007, the DoD had made five 
$120,000. 

12, 2007, QuantaDyn submitted five invoices 
under the BOWST/BOSS contract. As of 
payments to QuantaDyn totaling more than 

On December 10, 2007, Seguin opened an account for Simulation Fabrication Products 
at a Credit Union in San Antonio, Texas. On the same day, Seguin deposited a $9,000 payment 
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from the Tampa company into the account. 

On January 14, 2008, in furtherance of the scheme and conspiracy, Seguin sent and 
caused to be sent, in interstate commerce, an email message from Texas to the Tampa company 
concerning money being sent to the Tampa company by Bolduc/QuantaDyn; and the Tampa 
company responded that it would "turn it around as soon as we get it." On January 26, 2008, 
Seguin deposited $31,805.44 from the Tampa company into Simulation Fabrication Products' 
credit union account. 

By June 5, 2008, the Tampa company had paid Seguin $104,973.50 of the promised 
$105,000.00. 

CRMT Contract and Impex, Inc. 

On March 10, 2009, Seguin suggested to an employee of Prime Contractor A that it 
take on the CRMT contract, provided that it would, as the prime contractor, pass through the 
bulk of the contract work to QuantaDyn. 

From August through December 2009, as reflected in email communications, Seguin 
and a QuantaDyn software engineer and co-owner collaborated in drafting the statement of 
work that would later be included in the CRMT contract. They included a requirement that 
the prime contractor purchase up to 200 computer systems, not to exceed $350,000, from a 
recommended source, "Simulation Products," Seguin's company. 

On December 9, 2009, Seguin sent an email to an employee of Prime Contractor A, 
with copies to QuantaDyn, that included the confidential independent government cost 
estimate (IGCE) and the Military Interdepartmental Purchase Request (MIPR) documents that 
had been prepared in preparation of the CRMT contract. In the email, Seguin referred to the 
cost estimate as "the brakedown [sic] I have worked out with Quantadyn," and stated that "the 
plan will be" to sole-source the CRMT subcontract to QuantaDyn. 

On December 15, 2009, as requested by Seguin and RTD, the Army Communications 
Electronics Command (CECOM) at Fort Monmouth, New Jersey awarded the $1,212,000 
CRMT contract to Prime Contractor A by modif'ing/increasing an existing CECOM delivery 
order contract held by Prime Contractor A. 

As previously agreed, Prime Contractor A subcontracted the CRMT contract work to 
QuantaDyn for $1,091,776, which was ninety percent (90%) of the full contract amount. 
QuantaDyn's proposal to Prime Contractor A included $344,525 for computer hardware, 
consistent with the requirement, co-authored by Seguin and QuantaDyn's software engineer, 
for Simulation Products to be paid approximately $350,000 for computer equipment. 

In furtherance of the scheme and conspiracy, on March 30, 2010 Seguin sent and 
caused to be sent in interstate commerce an email from Texas to Fiuza Lima in Georgia. In 
the email, Seguin sought Fiuza Lima's assistancewith laundering money that Seguin expected 
to receive from QuantaDyn. Also on March 30, 2010, Fiuza Lima, through his company Impex 
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Inc., submitted to QuantaDyn and Bolduc a quote for work to be performed on the CRMT 
contract. Seguin had prepared the quote. The amount was $344,523.90. 

Subsequent emails between Seguin, Fiuza Lima, and Bolduc on behalf of QuantaDyn 
clarified the plan. There would be three payments from the CRMT contract to Seguin, the first 
being $98,863.38. The next two payments would be $122,830.26 each. The sum of the three 
amounts equaled $344,523.90. 

On May 9, 2010, in furtherance of the scheme and conspiracy, Seguin sent or caused 
to be sent, in interstate commerce, from Texas to QuantaDyn in Virginia, an e-mail message 
containing an Impex invoice for $98,863.38. On July 30, 2010, Seguin opened a checking 
account at a credit union in San Antonio, Texas in the name of Simulation Products, LLC, and 
on July 31, 2010, he deposited a check from Impex, Inc. into the newly established account. 
(On August 15, 2008, Seguin filed papers forming Simulation Products, LLC, a limited liability 
company.) 

Impex, Inc. banking records reflect six (6) deposits of funds from QuantaDyn totaling 
$335,536.32. Simulation Products, LLC banking records reflect six (6) deposits of funds from 
Impex, Inc. totaling $301,907. Specific transactions include the following. On December 6, 
2010, QuantaDyn sent a payment in the amount of $62,913.06 to Fiuza Lima and Impex, Inc. 
On December 18, 2010, Fiuza Lima and Impex, Inc. sent Seguin and Simulation Products, 
LLC a check for $56,621.75. On January 3, 2011, Seguin deposited $56,621.75 into his 
personal bank accounts and the Simulation Products, LLC account. 

Over the course of the CRMT contract, QuantaDyn made a profit of $103,857.02 in 
addition to the amounts paid to Impex Inc. and Seguin/Simulation Products, LLC. 

TDIT Contract and Simulation Products, LLC 

Seguin initiated three multiple task deliveries ("TDs") for RTD through the TDIT 
contract: TD-079, TD-1 14, and TD-215. Prime Contractor A, acting on previous discussions 
with Seguin and others, subcontracted the work to QuantaDyn. These multiple task delivery 
contracts would later be assumed by Prime Contractor B. 

TD-079 

TD-079 was a May 2, 2011 task delivery order in the amount of $3,102,850 that 
required the development, integration, fabrication, testing, and delivery of 17 Micro Boom 
Operator Simulation System (BOSS) table top training simulators, 8 Micro BOSS table top 
Image Generators, one BOSS visual upgrade kit, and supporting technical manuals. 
QuantaDyn and another company were subcontractors under this task delivery. The project 
was completed and closed in September 2012. QuantaDyn received $1,767,700 as a 
subcontractor. 

On February 21, 2011, prior to the award of TD-079, Seguin emailed Bolduc 
concerning work required for TD-079. Seguin stated he would add $6,000 to Bolduc's number 
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for the "custom grips" for the Micro BOSS simulators, thereby increasing the government's 
price per unit. Seguin added that his company, Simulation Products, LLC, would provide 20 
units of custom grips. Seguin was informing Bolduc that he would have to pay Seguin 
$120,000. 

Neither Seguin nor any or his companies purchased any equipment, including grips. 
GSA contract file records and emails from a Prime Contractor B employee reflect that a 
different subcontractor working with Prime Contractor A provided the grips in October 2011 
and March 2012. 

On June 6, 2011, Seguin, using Simulation Products, LLC, sent QuantaDyn an invoice 
for 17 units of custom grips at $6,000 each ($102,000 total) for TD-079. On June 21, 2011, 
Bolduc, acting on behalf of QuantaDyn, sent Simulation Products, LLC a check for $30,000 
as partial payment. Seguin deposited this check on July 23, 2011. By December 2011, 
QuantaDyn had made four (4) payments to Seguin/Simulation Products, LLC totaling $90,000. 

TD-114 

At the request of Seguin and RID, on September 28, 2011 GSA issued a modification 
to the TDIT contract and added ID-Il 4. It provided Prime Contractor A with $919,144 for 
onsite personnel at Randolph AFB, Texas to plan, manage, and budget 1.1. projects for RID, 
and to continue the procurement of 5 Micro BOSS table-top training simulators and 40 BOSS 
Stick Grips referenced under TD-079. Prime Contractor A, acting on previous discussions 
with Seguin and others, used QuantaDyn to assemble the Micro BOSS simulators and a 
different subcontractor to acquire the 40 BOSS Stick Grips. 

By August 2012, contract modifications had increased the allocated funds to 
$4,222,136 for TD-1 14. With these modifications, an additional subcontract was awarded to 
QuantaDyn to design, integrate, and deliver hardware and software for the Air National Guard 
Advanced Joint Terminal Attack Controller Training System (AAJTS) through February 2014. 
QuantaDyn was to create a prototype AAJTS simulator. 

On December 9, 2011, Seguin emailed Bolduc and said he was raising the amount of 
the payments he expected from QuantaDyn. Seguin told Bolduc there were 32 orders to 
purchase Micro BOSS table-top training simulators, including 17 Micro BOSS table-top 
training simulators previously ordered under TD-079, and that the new total "for all units" 
QuantaDyn had subcontracts to produce required "40 grips/grip sets." The amount of the 
payment Seguin/Simulation Products, LLC expected from QuantaDyn increased to $7,500 per 
each grip/grip set. QuantaDyn would have to inflate the cost of materials that it quoted to 
Prime Contractor A to $7,500 to cover Seguin's request. 

On March 20, 2012, Seguin sent an email to Bolduc that contained a spreadsheet of the 
grip prices. Seguin also included a Simulation Products invoice/quote reflecting a price of 
$7,500 per unit. Based on Seguin's calculations in the spreadsheet, QuantaDyn was to pay 
Seguin a total of $274,500. From March 2012 through August 2012, Bolduc and QuantaDyn 
made seven (7) payments to Seguin/Simulation Products LLC, totaling $209,500 for the 
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"grips/grip sets." Seguin's emails, financial accounts and other documents do not reflect that 
Seguin or anyone purporting to work for Simulation Products LLC actually performed work 
or spent money for materials, labor, or travel related to the invoice to QuantaDyn for the 
grips/grip sets. Additionally, QuantaDyn is not aware of any evidence that would support the 
matters described in the Simulation Products, LLC invoices. 

Also in March 2012, Seguin was dissatisfied with his employment with the 
government. On March 7, 2012, Seguin and Bolduc exchanged text messages. Seguin wrote 
to Bolduc, "We need to talk more and come up with a way that will let me move as soon as 
able..." Bolduc replied, "Move as in leave govt [sic: government]," and Seguin responded, 
"Yes." In a reply, Bolduc, stated "Unfortunately we are not self sustaining yet. And aajts 
JTAC will only happen if you stay." Seguin responded, "I know. We need to make an exit 
plan around that." 

TD-215 

On September 25, 2012, GSA made a modification to the TDIT contract, adding ID- 
215, valued at $5,899,178. For this amount, Prime Contractor A would provide onsite 
personnel at Randolph AFB, Texas; continue the development of the prototype AAJTS 
simulator via a subcontract to QuantaDyn; procure 16 different Joint Terminal Attack 
Controller (JTAC) simulator systems via a subcontract with another subcontractor; and procure 
a Helmet Mounted Integrated Targeting System for integration into an F-16 Fighter Jet training 
simulator. Besides QuantaDyn, two other companies were subcontractors under TD-215. 
QuantaDyn was paid $3,658,711 from TD-215 by Prime Contractors A and B. 

On October 1, 2012, Seguin, on behalf of Simulation Products, LLC, sent an Invoice 
in the amount of $116,000 for eight (8) IG Chassis to QuantaDyri as part of TD-215. On 
October 29, 2012, QuantaDyn, after approval from Bolduc, sent a Purchase Order to 
Simulation Products, LLC for eight (8) IG Chassis in the amount of $116,000.00. Financial 
records for Seguin and Simulation Products LLC do not reveal the expenditure of money for 
materials, labor or travel related to any IG chassis. Additionally, QuantaDyn is not aware of 
any evidence that would support the matters described in the Simulation Products, LLC 
invoices. 

In furtherance of the scheme and conspiracy, on February 27, 2013 Bolduc, located in 
Virginia, and Seguin, located in Texas, exchanged text messages. Seguin implied that he 
worked late because he was trying to make money for Bolduc. Bolduc instructed Seguin to 
check the "SP inbox," referring to an email account that Seguin controlled on behalf of 
Simulation Products LLC. Bolduc told Seguin to "thank me" after Seguin checked. Bolduc 
then told Seguin, "you make me money and I won't mention your butt to anyone." 

At the time, Seguin was working with Bolduc and another QuantaDyn employee to 
establish the AAJTS Low Rate Production (LRP) sales prices. Seguin also sought Bolduc's 
assistance with the independent government cost estimates. Seguin was also working to obtain 
purchase commitments from Headquarters Air Force (HAF) to buy the AAJTS devices through 
the GSA contract that Seguin was working to establish. 
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QuantaDyn was still a small software development company with no more than 10 
employees. Most of its revenue came from subcontracts in support of the Air National Guard. 
QuantaDyn needed work and funds from the AAJTS production contract to grow, and it needed 
Seguin's help and influence to get that work and those funds. 

Statements from accounts held by Simulation Products, LLC, QuantaDyn, and Seguin, 
as well as emails contemporaneous with the TDIT contract, reveal that QuantaDyn made thirty- 
four (34) payments to Seguin/Simulation Products, LLC between June 21, 2011 and June 23, 
2014, totaling $880,009.44, in return for government contracts that Seguin was able to steer to 
QuantaDyn through Prime Contractor A and Prime Contractor B. During this same time, 
QuantaDyn earned profits of $604,669.82. 

TO-i Contract 

At RID, the ID-i contract was known as Seguin's contract. In September 2012, a 
year before the ID-i contract was awarded, Seguin's emails revealed his plan to use the GSA 
Alliant GWAC contract system exclusively to support RID's mission. Seguin estimated the 
contract would have a $495M ceiling over a five-year period. 

Months before GSA solicited proposals for the $413 million ID-I contract, Seguin 
worked with Bolduc and another owner of QuantaDyn to establish the AAJTS Low Rate 
Production pricing for a quantity of 10 AAJTS devices QuantaDyn intended to sell to the 
government. In March 2013, Bolduc believed AAJTS was QuantaDyn's "last chance to make 
money." Bolduc and another owner of QuantaDyn prepared brochures and sales information 
for Seguin to use to promote the AAJTS to prospective government and Foreign Military Sales 
buyers. Seguin, QuantaDyn's owners, including Bolduc, and QuantaDyn's subcontractors 
were enthusiastic about the millions in income that QuantaDyn would derive from 
manufacturing AAJTS simulators and supplying supporting personnel to maintain the 
simulators. 

Email communications reveal that Seguin and Prime Contractor B employees agreed, 
before the contract was awarded, that Seguin would designate projects to be awarded to 
QuantaDyn, and Prime Contractor B would accept a percentage of the contract funds in return 
for passing the bulk of the contract funds and work to QuantaDyn. Prime Contractor B was to 
receive five percent of the funding for each module that Prime Contractor B sole-sourced to 
QuantaDyn, but it ended up receiving ten percent. 

Email communications also revealed that Seguin, Prime Contractor B employees, and 
Bolduc collaborated to eliminate competition and fix prices by sharing the government's 
confidential budget figures and plans, sharing the "independent" government cost estimates, 
and perpetuating the ongoing pass-through arrangement whereby Prime Contractor B took a 
percentage fee to pass the work and money through to QuantaDyn. 
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The (JTC TRS) Program 

As plans to develop the TD-1 Contract progressed, another simulator program that 
would achieve some of the same objectives as the AAJTS program was also moving forward. 
In August 2012, the active duty Air Force's Simulator Systems Program Office (SIM SPO), at 
Wright-Patterson AFB, Ohio, issued solicitation number FA8621-12-R-6335. It requested 
proposals from interested vendors to build a simulator to train Air Force active duty military 
personnel in close-air-support operations, air traffic control, and call for fire coordination. This 
program was known as the Joint Terminal Control Training and Rehearsal System ("JTC 
IRS") program. 

AAJTS and JTC IRS had different Air Force customers: AAJTS for the Air National 
Guard and JTC TRS for active duty Air Force units. These two customers received separate 
funding for their respective simulator training programs. If the JTC TRS program was 
cancelled, the AAJTS program was in a position to benefit financially from a broader base of 
clients and funding. 

The JTC TRS program consisted of three components: Development, Production, and 
Sustainment. The Air Force expected to purchase 51 devices under the contract and implement 
additional capabilities, including Distributed Mission Operations connectivity for the Air 
Force's Air Combat Command (ACC) and Air Force Special Operations Command (AFSOC). 

From August 2012 through April 2013, Quantadyn, Bolduc and another QuantaDyn 
executive were working with Seguin to develop the AAJTS training simulator, as part of the 
potential TD-1 contract, to train Air National Guard military personnel in close-air-support 
operations. On February 18, 2013, Quantadyn, Bolduc, and another Quantadyn executive 
worked with Seguin to establish the AAJTS Production Cost Estimate for Low Rate Production 
(LRP) for the Air National Guard under the TD- I contract. 

The AAJTS and JTC TRS programs were, at about the same time, both on the trajectory 
of development, production, and sustainment to provide close - air - support simulation training 
to the Air Force's military personnel. But the JTC TRS solicitation was farther along in the 
procurement process than the ID-I contract that was to be used to procure the AAJTS devices. 

Continuing Efforts to Secure the ID-i Contract 

As Seguin worked with QuantaDyn, Bolduc and others to prepare for future AAJTS 
simulator production, he sent an email message to Bolduc, on February 18, 2013, that included 
the independent government cost estimate for the AAJTS simulator, the subject of the proposed 
TD-1 Contract. On March 8, 2013, Bolduc texted Seguin that the AAJTS simulator is "our last 
chance to make money. Let's go out with a bang." 

In furtherance of the scheme, from April 2013 through September 2013, Seguin worked 
with Prime Contractor B's employees to steer the TD-1 contract to Prime Contractor B. Prime 
Contractor B's employees understood that the AAJTS production orders were to go to 
QuantaDyn by way of subcontract under the TD- I contract. 
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On April 24, 2013, in a text message to a Prime Contractor B employee, Seguin asked 
for the employee's personal email address so that he could send the proposed Quality 
Assurance Surveillance Plan for the TD- 1 contract before GSA published its request for 
proposals. 

On June 28, 2013, GSA issued the performance work statement for the TD-1 contract 
and requested proposals from approximately 60 contractors, including Prime Contractor B. 
The Evaluation Criteria, with Seguin's input, weighted Past Experience (PE) and Technical 
Approach (TA) over price. These evaluation criteria would end up benefiting Prime Contractor 
B, whose proposal was $58,516,760 higher than the one other company that submitted a 
proposal ("Competitor 1"). 

On August 1, 2013, Bolduc received an internal QuantaDyn email listing bonuses to be 
paid to seven employees, including $10,000 for Bolduc. The author of the message stated, 
"You worked hard to get a lot of 'deals' with Keith and company and deserve as much credit 
as me." 

The Cancellation of the JTC TRS Solicitation 

From July 2013 through January 2014, QuantaDyn, Bolduc, another QuantaDyn 
executive, and Seguin implemented a plan for QuantaDyn to sell 100 AAJTS devices to the 
active-duty Air Force, Air National Guard, and Foreign Military Sales. For this plan to 
succeed, the JTC IRS contract had to be canceled. Seguin and an Air National Guard employee 
communicated with Air Force officials in an effort to persuade the Air Force to cancel the JTC 
TRS solicitation after the Air Force had accepted JTC IRS proposals. On April 4, 2014, the 
Air Force SIM SPO canceled the JTC TRS solicitation without making an award. 

Because the active-duty Air Force's Air Combat Command and Air Force Special 
Operations Command (AFSOC) would not be able to purchase simulators for their close-air- 
support training through the cancelled JTC TRS contract, the only viable option for them was 
to purchase the AAJTS devices from QuantaDyn through the TD- I contract. In other words, 
QuantaDyn was able to capture 100 percent of the work related to the Air Force's close-air- 
support training mission. From 2014 through 2015, QuantaDyn received eight orders from 
Headquarters Air Force and AFSOC that were originally marked for the JTC TRS contract. 
QuantaDyn then leveraged the past experience it had gained through its relationship with 
Seguin to compete and win the 2016 award of the JTC TRS contract, sustaining QuantaDyn's 
control over 100 percent of the Air Force's close-air-support simulation training through 
January 2021. 

The Award of the TD-1 Contract 

While he was working to cancel the JTC-TRS solicitation, Seguin was about to serve 
as a member of the GSA source selection team for the TD-1 contract. On August 12, 2013, he 
signed a non-disclosure agreement and conflict-of-interest declaration form as a member of 
the source selection team. The next day, Seguin emailed to an employee of Prime Contract B 
a copy of the form that the source selection team would use to evaluate Prime Contractor B's 
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proposal. The email's subject line read, "fill in sheet." 

On August 15, 2013, Seguin, located in Texas, emailed the confidential proposal 
submitted by Competitor 1, along with a blank source selection team evaluation form, to an 
employee of Prime Contractor B located in Ohio. Seguin intentionally disclosed confidential 
source selection information and bid and proposal information in an effort to benefit himself, 
QuantaDyn, Bolduc, and Prime Contractor B. 

In early August 2013, while establishing part number schemes for the AAJTS devices, 
Bolduc informed another owner of QuantaDyn of the intent to have customers, like Seguin and 
RTD, direct AAJTS orders through the TD- 1 Contract awardee to QuantaDyn. By August 19, 
2013, Bolduc and the other owner of QuantaDyn implemented plans to establish a corporation 
specializing in technical services for a Training System Support Center (TSSC). On September 
3, 2013, Bolduc and another owner of QuantaDyn formed a corporation specializing in 
technical services. Bolduc expected Seguin to direct Contractor Operated Maintenance and 
Contractor Logistics Support (COMS/CLS) work under the TD- I contract to Prime Contractor 
B, which would then award subcontracts to the newly formed technical services company. The 
COMS/CLS work under the ID-i contract supported the AAJTS and another training 
simulator. The work flowed from Prime Contractor B to QuantaDyn, and then from 
QuantaDyn to the newly formed technical services company. This specialized work was 
performed through the Training System Support Center (TSSC), whose technicians maintained 
the simulators after they were delivered to the military. The other QuantaDyn owner 
anticipated QuantaDyn would receive the COMS/CLS work and helped establish the new 
company in advance of the TD- I Contract 

On September 16, 2013, one day before the contract award, Seguin emailed Bolduc the 
independent government cost estimates for TD-1 contract modules 001 through 009. In the 
email, Seguin told Bolduc to work with an employee at Prime Contractor B "so the quotes [on 
the initial nine modules] are ready ASAP." Seguin also reminded Bolduc that the quotes could 
not exceed the available government funding listed on the spreadsheet Seguin provided. 
Seguin needed the quotes to be ready "ASAP" because the end of the government's fiscal year 
was fast approaching. The funds might be lost if they were not obligated before the fiscal year 
ended. 

On September 17, 2013, at the request of Seguin and RTD, GSA awarded the TD-1 
contract, a $413,395,584 delivery order, to Prime Contractor B through an existing GSA 
Al liant multiple awards contract. The period of performance was from September 2013 
through September 2014, with four option years. 

On September 18, 2013, Seguin texted Bolduc "Contract award is complete. You better 
get that Audi RS5 on order ...... [sic] the Millions are coming." Bolduc replied, "Cool. So do I 
have to like you now?" and then asked if Prime Contractor B received the contract. Seguin 
responded, "Yes, love me!! !" 
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TD-1 Contract Work Directed to QuantaDyn and Seguin Bribe Payments 

Immediately after the GSA award, and as previously agreed between Seguin and Prime 
Contractor B's employees, QuantaDyn and Bolduc exchanged emails with Prime Contractor 
B about the types of subcontracts QuantaDyn preferred to receive from Prime Contractor B. 

In April 2014, Prime Contractor B awarded a $75,000,000 Indefinite-Delivery 
Indefinite Quantity (IDIQ) subcontract to QuantaDyn to work as its subcontractor under the 
ID-I contract for the duration of the ID-I contract. 

Except under circumstances that were not present in this case, the law does not permit 
prime contractors and subcontractors to receive independent government cost estimates, 
MIPRs, MIPR amounts, or other government budget data prior to preparing their initial bids 
for submission to the government. Competitive pricing is impossible when a government 
representative agrees with a prime contractor and its subcontractor that they will receive all 
orders, and then informs them how much the government has to spend. Ordinarily, prime 
contractors use competition between subcontractors to achieve the best price/lowest price in 
order to maximize prime contractor profit. Prime contractors also develop their pricing 
independent of the government's pricing. And an agency representative, such as Seguin, 
cannot and does not tell the prime contractor what price to charge or how much to pay its 
subcontractor. 

On September 25, 2013, Seguin sent an email to an employee of Prime Contractor B, 
discussing how much money the prime contractor could charge for work performed by 
QuantaDyn under the TD- 1 contract. Prime Contractor B and QuantaDyn proposals for the 
ID-I modules, along with related Bolduc, Seguin and Prime Contractor B employees' emails, 
reveal that, by September 2014, Prime Contractor B's fee for modules passed to QuantaDyn 
increased from five percent to ten percent. 

On February 28, 2014, QuantaDyn sent Simulation Products a check for $60,000. On 
March 10, 2014, Seguin deposited it into a Simulation Products account at a credit union. 

On March 13, 2014, Seguin recommended approval of payment requests that Prime 
Contractor B had submitted to GSA under modules 1, 4 and 5 of the ID-I contract. 

On April 10, 2014, Seguin exchanged text messages with Bolduc about purchasing an 
Audi sports car that was listed for sale for $66,000. Seguin wrote to Bolduc, "You promised 
you would buy it for me. I got you a sweet deal." Bolduc responded, "K. I'll ship $40k after 
Boise install." Bolduc's reference to "Boise" pertained to the installation of a simulator for 
the Air National Guard unit near Boise, LD. 

On April 15, 2014, Seguin exchanged text messages with Bolduc about buying the car. 
Seguin wrote, "It is by far the nicest car I have ever driven. Now I have to just pay for it." 
Bolduc responded, "Sign those dd2SOs." Bolduc was referring to the Department of Defense 
Form 250, "Material Inspection and Receiving Report" that Seguin signed as a part of his 
official duties after QuantaDyn delivered product to the government. 
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On June 7, 2014, Seguin exchanged text messages with Bolduc about the Audi sports 
car. Seguin wrote that he was driving the car and thought it was the best. Bolduc replied, 
"Cool" and then followed up with another message that read, "Team effort. It takes two." 

On July 12, 2014, Seguin exchanged text messages with Bolduc about setting up a 
meeting with the new "head of' Prime Contractor B. Bolduc indicated he was at a retirement 
party for Prime Contractor B's outgoing President and met the new leader of Prime Contractor 
B. Bolduc told Seguin he would set up a meeting with Seguin and the new head of Prime 
Contractor B in Sterling, Virginia. 

On September 12, 2015, Seguin sent an email to a Prime Contractor B employee 
located in Ohio. Seguin provided "target numbers" for 17 upcoming TD-1 modules and said 
he was working numbers for two others. For each module, Seguin supplied the amount Prime 
Contractor B would pay QuantaDyn and the amount Prime Contractor B would keep. Prime 
Contractor B's share was one-tenth of QuantaDyn's share. 

Bolduc and QuantaDyn agreed to pay Seguin for his efforts in directing TD- I contract 
work and government money to QuantaDyn. QuantaDyn would appear to be paying an 
engineering company for assembly of metal frames for the AAJTS simulator, as well as 
engineering services pertaining to factory acceptance testing and site acceptance testing for 
every completed AAJTS simulator. In truth, QuantaDyn's employees assembled the metal 
frames and conducted both the factory and site acceptance tests. QuantaDyn's payments to 
Seguin were bribes. 

To further the scheme and conspiracy, and to hide the QuantaDyn payments, Bolduc 
and QuantaDyn directed Seguin to form a new company. On October 22, 2014, Seguin filed 
assumed name papers at the County Clerk's Office in New Braunfels, Comal County, Texas 
for Epic 1 Engineering Services. An employee with Prime Contractor B helped Seguin design 
the Epic 1 logo used by Seguin on quotes and invoices sent to QuantaDyn. 

On October 29, 2014, Seguin sent a text message to Bolduc's cell phone, stating among 
other information, "New company name. Epic I Engineering Services." On November 29, 
2014, Seguin exchanged a series of text messages with Bolduc regarding payments from 
QuantaDyn to Seguin. In those text messages, Bolduc set out a schedule of payments to be 
made to Seguin. 

On December 26, 2014, Seguin opened a business checking account and business 
savings account for Epic I ES at a credit union in San Antonio, Texas. The next day Seguin 
caused a $200,000 QuantaDyn check, dated November 28, 2014 and payable to Epic I 
Engineering Services, to be deposited into the new Epicl Engineering Services checking and 
savings account at the credit union in San Antonio. 

In February 2015, Seguin's spouse used her maiden name to obtain a charter for a 
limited liability company, Epic! Engineering Service, LLC, from the Texas Secretary of State. 
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To further conceal the true nature of the payments Seguin received from Bolduc and 
QuantaDyn, Seguin created a quote for services to be provided by Epic 1 Engineering Services 
to QuantaDyn, dated June 1, 2015. Seguin emailed that quote to Bolduc on August 8, 2015. 
According to the quote, Epic 1 Engineering Services would receive $59,435 per AAJTS 
device. 

From August 8, 2015 through April 25, 2016, Seguin sent or caused to be sent to Bolduc 
by email nine (9) invoices concerning purported work by Epic I Engineering Services in 
connection with the AAJTS simulator and the TD-1 contract. Between November 28, 2014 
and September 10, 2016, Bolduc, acting on behalf of QuantaDyn, made 13 payments to Epici 
Engineering Services for a total of $1,055,206. Prime Contractor B, QuantaDyn, and Epicl 
Engineering Services bank account records, along with GSA contracting files, reveal that the 
funds originated from GSA accounts associated with the TD-1 contract. 

For example, on November 21, 2015 Seguin sent an email message from Epiel 
Engineering Services to Bolduc that included an Epici invoice for $59,435. On December 18, 
2015, Bolduc and QuantaDyn caused a check, number 7787, to be sent to Epic I Engineering 
Services in the amount of $59,435. 

On February 6, 2016, in furtherance of the scheme and conspiracy, Bolduc emailed an 
Epic 1 Engineering Services sales invoice from Virginia to Seguin in Texas. The invoice was 
dated March 1, 2016, and the amount payable to Epici Engineering Services was $209,746. 

On September 9, 2016, Seguin deposited QuantaDyn's check number 8136, in the 
amount of $59,435.00, into the Epici Engineering Services savings account at a credit union. 
It was the last payment that Seguin deposited into the Epic I Engineering Services account. 

As late as February 14, 2017, Seguin continued to email government-prepared 
spreadsheets detailing confidential Air Force budgets, and how much the Air National Guard 
was paying for modules 9, 65, 112 and 116 in the TD-1 contract, to QuantaDyn and Bolduc. 
Seguin told Bolduc and another QuantaDyn employee to add 18% to 20%, plus the 3% GSA 
fee, on top of QuantaDyn's proposal to Prime Contractor B. 

Financial records of the Epic I Engineering Services accounts and Seguin's personal 
accounts do not show that money obtained from QuantaDyn was expended to support any of 
the matters described in the Epic I Engineering Services invoices to QuantaDyn. Additionally, 
QuantaDyn is not aware of any evidence that would support the matters described in the Epic I 
Engineering Services invoices. 

Proposed TD-2 Contract 

In February 2015, Seguin and RTD proposed to GSA a new $1.2 billion multiple award 
indefinite-delivery, indefinite-quantity (IDIQ) contract, (TD-2), to replace the TD- I contract. 
From then through April 14, 2016, Seguin "served" as GSA COR during the formulation of 
the solicitation for the TD-2 contract. 
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Early on in the procurement process, Seguin and Bolduc communicated on March 29, 
2015, about steering the TD-2 Contract to QuantaDyn. Seguin offered to try to increase the 
contract ceiling from $1.4 to $1.8 billion because, "[t]hat would help the sale if that is what we 
want," referring to selling QuantaDyn after QuantaDyn won the billion dollar contract. Bolduc 
thought it would be tough to pull off a standalone contract award and mentioned he and Seguin 
needed to talk strategy. Bolduc and Seguin expressed concerns about QuantaDyn's ability to 
meet the financial requirements for the contract. Bolduc proposed a potential protégé/mentor 
relationship with another defense contractor. In furtherance of the scheme, Bolduc and 
QuantaDyn then pursued a line of credit with a financial institution in order to meet the 
financial requirements of the contract. 

In June 2015, Seguin's shell company, Epic I Engineering Services, showed up in an 
audit that was being conducted by a financial institution as part of its evaluation of 
QuantaDyn's line of credit application. Bolduc wrote in a text message to Seguin, "Fuck. Epic 
showed up in audit." Seguin asked what the auditors wanted to see. Bolduc replied, purchase 
orders, invoices, checks, "the whole trail." Bolduc inquired if Epic 1 Engineering Services 
had an email account. Seguin said it did not and offered to create one. Bolduc replied, "I think 
it would be good." Days later, Seguin offered ideas to Bolduc about what to put on the fictitious 
invoices, to include Factory Acceptance Testing and Quality Assurance services, or Instructor 
Operator Station, integration, and set up, if the invoices pertained to Epic I Engineering 
providing a product. 

In July 2015, Seguin had a Prime Contractor B employee create multiple logos for his 
Epic I Engineering Services shell company. Seguin selected one of these logos and used it 
when creating fraudulent Epic I Engineering Services' invoices. Seguin used these invoices 
to conceal the bribery payments by listing services that Epic I Engineering Services never 
provided to QuantaDyn. Seguin then sent the completed fraudulent Epic I Engineering 
Services' invoices to Bolduc. In furtherance of the scheme, Bolduc edited the Epic 1 

Engineering Services invoices and emailed them back to Seguin. To give the appearance of a 
normal business transaction, it was understood Seguin would send the now edited and still 
fraudulent Epic I Engineering Services' invoices to Bolduc. 

During the same period, Seguin received $790,206 in payments from QuantaDyn. 
While promoting the new contract, Seguin allowed Bolduc to redraw the GSA solicitation 
package to his liking, and also disclosed GSA's revised solicitation package to Bolduc months 
before GSA intended to release it for competition. Seguin followed the same pattern that he 
had used to fix previous RTD contracts in favor of Bolduc and QuantaDyn. 

Senior executives from Prime Contractor B and executives from its parent company 
coordinated with QuantaDyn, Bolduc, and Seguin about the TD-2 contract. In August 2015, a 
senior official at Prime Contractor B informed Seguin that another senior executive at Prime 
Contractor B wanted to meet with both Seguin and Bolduc in Sterling, Virginia. Seguin was 
unable to travel until after the government fiscal year started on October 1, 2015. On October 
19, 2015, Bolduc, on behalf of QuantaDyn, met for dinner with two senior executives 
representing Prime Contractor B and its parent company. They discussed the TD-2 contract 
over dinner. Prior to this meeting, a person close to Bolduc cautioned him not to say too much 
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about "inside" information during the meeting. 

On October 21, 2015, Seguin flew from Texas to Dulles, Virginia on official 
government travel to meet with a senior executive from Prime Contractor B's parent company 
who had previously met with Bolduc. A Prime Contractor B employee who assisted Seguin 
in steering the TD-1 contract to Prime Contractor B traveled to Dulles, Virginia from Ohio to 
introduce Seguin to the senior executive. On October 22, 2015, Seguin met with a senior 
executive from the parent company of Prime Contractor B, business development leaders, and 
the employee from Ohio at a restaurant in Virginia. They discussed the TD-2 contract, which 
Seguin was intimately involved with at the time. GSA contracting officials were not present 
at the meeting, and Prime Contractor B paid for Seguin's meal. 

The day after this meeting, the senior executive from the Prime Contractor B parent 
company who had met with Seguin extended a draft offer for QuantaDyn and the Prime 
Contractor B parent company to work together as a team to develop a proposal for the TD-2 
contract. 

By December 15, 2015, GSA had solicited and received information from five potential 
prime contractors, including QuantaDyn and the parent company of Prime Contractor B. GSA 
forwarded the responses to Seguin for review and analysis as part of his official duties. On 
December 17, 2015, QuantaDyn and the parent company of Prime Contractor B signed a 
teaming agreement to pursue the TD-2 contract together. 

On January 25, 2016, Seguin emailed Bolduc a draft of the GSA TD-2 contract 
solicitation package seeking input, and on January 28, 2016 Bolduc emailed Seguin, providing 
his comments on nine sections of GSA's proposed solicitation package. Bolduc proposed 
changes to make multiple sections more advantageous to contractors. For example, for Section 
C. 18.0, Bolduc said, "demanding a one year warranty of this nature for free is unfair.. ." On 
February 10, 2016, Seguin pasted Bolduc's changes into a new email and sent it to the GSA 
COs. Seguin told the GSA COs he prepared the comments offline. A March 28, 2016 GSA 
revision of the solicitation revealed GSA had incorporated Bolduc/QuantaDyn's changes into 
the solicitation. 

On April 7, 2016, a GSA contracting official sent a copy of the GSA TD-2 solicitation 
to Seguin at Seguin's request. On April 11,2016, in furtherance of the scheme and conspiracy, 
Seguin emailed this GSA TD-2 solicitation, as well as three sample statement-of-objectives 
templates, from Texas to Bolduc in Virginia. GSA had not yet released the solicitation for 
competition. In his email message, Seguin told Bolduc, "You know what to do." 

On April 14, 2016, GSA removed Seguin from his COR authority on the TD-1 contract 
and the TD-2 solicitation. Seguin continued to work at RTD, however, where he had access 
to government computer servers with contract information concerning training simulator 
projects. GSA's removal of Seguin's COR responsibilities significantly diminished Seguin's 
ability to influence contracting officers' future decisions and contract documentation while the 
TD-2 solicitation proceeded. 
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By October 2016, GSA-OIG agents had advised GSA's regional management in Fort 
Worth that the TD-2 solicitation had been compromised by unauthorized disclosures. Agents 
disclosed emails in which Seguin released solicitation draft documents to Bolduc. GSA 
delayed the TD-2 contract solicitation. 

Seguin's Departure from RTD 

In December 2016, Seguin established a new email account, 
"spengeneering101@gmail.com" and used this account to communicate with Bolduc and 
another QuantaDyn employee. Emails between Seguin, Bolduc, and the QuantaDyn employee 
in January 2017 reveal a plan to create a new position, "Director of Programs," at a QuantaDyn 
affiliate. Seguin would be hired to fill the position. 

On January 23, 2017, Seguin transmitted a Program Engineering Manager job 
description to the QuantaDyn employee for the new job Seguin intended to fill. Between 
January26 and January 28,2017, the QuantaDyn employee forwarded Seguin'sjob description 
to Bolduc, saying it looked pretty good, but expressing some concerns. Bolduc responded by 
stating that the description was good enough, that "Bro" (Seguin) was to work primarily for 
the affiliated company in the near term, that his QuantaDyn duties would be defined, and that 
"Bro could help both companies immensely and immediately." 

On April 5, 2017, Seguin emailed his resume to Bolduc. It omitted any reference to 
Seguin's businesses, Simulation Fabrication Products, Simulation Products LLC, and Epic! 
Engineering Service LLC. On July 8, 2017, Seguin resigned from his government position 
after 28 years at RID. On July 9, 2017, Seguin accepted a salaried position as the Director of 
Programs with a company associated with QuantaDyn. Seguin would report directly to 
Bolduc. Seguin's compensation and benefits included an annual salary of$ 175,000, a $10,000 
sign-on bonus, and multiple fringe benefits. Seguin's place of employment was at 
QuantaDyn's facility in Ashburn, Virginia. 

On April 24, 2018, Seguin sent a text message to Bolduc about remaining bribery 
payments. In the text message, Seguin wrote there was approximately $650,000 in bribes that 
were not paid and that he and Bolduc would address "later." Seguin acknowledged he would 
loved to have it all, but knew that was "hard to deal with." Seguin asked for $400,000 - 
$450,000 and the rest could be made by increasing his Director of Programs salary to $190,000 
$195,000 per year. Seguin also indicated in the text message he was open to exploring other 
payment options to collect the remaining $650,000 in bribes and would call Bolduc later. 

Resulting Financial Harm to the United States 

As a result of the criminal acts described above, the United States experienced at least 
the following financial losses: 

Boom Simulator Contract $115,500.00 
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CRMT Contract $450,868.34 

TDIT Contract $1,484,679.26 

Prime Contractor B's profit on the ID-I $11,471,254.84 

Contract 

Bribes QuantaDyn paid to Defendant and $1,055,206.00 
recouped from the United States under the 
TD-1 Contract 

QuantaDyn's profit on the ID-I Contract $23,180,205.47 

Total $37,757,713.91 

STATEMENT OF FACTS for COUNT ONE of the INFORMATION 

The following Statement of Facts is incorporated by reference as part of the Plea Agreement 

between Defendant and the United States, and they hereby agree and stipulate that the following 

information is true and accurate. Defendant acknowledges that, had this matter proceeded to trial, the 

United States would have proven beyond a reasonable doubt the facts set forth below and in the 

Information: 

As part of a conspiracy and scheme to fix government contracts, to eliminate 
competition in contracting, to frustrate and defeat government agency contracting procedures, 
and to defraud and steal money from the government, QuantaDyn, people acting on behalf of 
QuantaDyn and others paid bribes to Seguin, an Air Force civilian employee of the 502 Trainer 
Development Squadron (Randolph Trainer Development or RTD) at Randolph Air Force Base 
near San Antonio, Texas, in return for Seguin's influence in obtaining government contracts 
and subcontracts for QuantaDyn, and colluding in a fraud against the United States. The tax 
investigation concentrated on Seguin's failure, from 2010 through 2016, to report the income 
he earned from bribe payments received from QuantaDyn as well as income earned from the 
sale of stolen government owned parts and equipment. 

The scheme and artifice devised and executed by Seguin, QuantaDyn, and other co- 
conspirators involved the following government contracts, which overlapped in time frame and 
subject matter: 
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A. Boom Simulator contract; 
B. Crew Resource Management Trainer (CRMT) contract; 

C. Trainer IT Development contract; 

D. Trainer Development I contract; and 

E. Proposed Trainer Development 2 contract. 

Seguin Income from Bribe Payments 

The tax investigation revealed the following bribe payments received by Seguin from 

QuantaDyn accounts: 

Date Payee Amount 

07/31/2010 Simulation Products $43,140.32 

08/14/20 10 Simulation Products $45,836.59 

09/22/2010 Simulation Products $28,310.88 

09/22/2010 Simulation Products $28,310.87 

11/12/2010 Simulation Products $53,850.00 

01/03/2011 Simulation Products $18,873.92 
01/03/2011 Simulation Products $18,873.92 

01/03/2011 Simulation Products $18,873.91 

02/05/20 1 1 Simulation Products $15,278.86 
02/05/2011 Simulation Products $15,278.86 

02/05/2011 Simulation Products $15,278.87 

07/02/2011 Simulation Products $30,000.00 
07/23/2011 Simulation Products $15,000.00 

07/23/2011 Simulation Products $15,000.00 

09/21/2011 Simulation Products $15,000.00 

11/19/2011 Simulation Products $15,000MO 

03/24/20 12 Simulation Products $45,000.00 

04/06/2012 Simulation Products $27,000.00 
05/04/2012 Simulation Products $15,000.00 

05/11/2012 Simulation Products $15,000.00 

05/22/2012 Simulation Products $45,000.00 

06/16/2012 Simulation Products $37,500.00 

08/25/2012 Simulation Products $25,000.00 

11/03/2012 Simulation Products $28,000.00 

02/09/2013 Simulation Products $23,000.00 

04/05/2013 Simulation Products $28,000.00 

04/29/2013 Simulation Products $40,000.00 
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Payee Amount 
05/25/2013 Simulation Products $44,000.00 
06/06/2013 Simulation Products $40,000.00 
07/03/2013 Simulation Products $56,000.00 
07/12/2013 Simulation Products $60,000.00 
08/16/2013 Simulation Products $61,509.44 
03/10/2014 Simulation Products $30,000.00 
03/10/2014 Simulation Products $30,000.00 
03/10/2014 Simulation Products $30,000.00 
03/10/2014 Simulation Products $30,000.00 
05/09/2014 Simulation Products $40,000.00 
07/12/2014 Simulation Products $40,000.00 
12/27/2014 Epic I Engineering $100,000.00 
12/27/2014 Epic I Engineering $100,000.00 
03/13/2015 Simulation Products $25,000.00 
05/18/2015 Epic I Engineering $40,000.00 
08/24/2015 Epic I Engineering $17,979.00 
08/27/2015 Epic I Engineering $59,435.00 
10/02/2015 Epic I Engineering $59,435.00 
10/16/2015 Epic I Engineering $59,435.00 
10/24/2015 Epic 1 Engineering $59,435.00 
01/09/2016 Epic 1 Engineering $59,435.00 
01/26/2016 Epic 1 Engineering $59,435.00 
02/27/2016 Epic I Engineering $59,435.00 
03/24/2016 Epic I Engineering $209,746.00 
05/12/2016 Epic I Engineering $104,980.00 
09/09/20 16 Epic I Engineering $59,435.00 

In summary, Seguin received $2,243,016.44 in bribe payments from QuantaDyn from 
2010 through 2016. The tax investigation revealed that Seguin failed to report any of that 
income to the IRS. 

The payments were made to the following assumed names and entities created by 

Seguin: 

A. Simulation Fabrication Products, 
B. Simulation Products, 
C. Simulation Products, LLC, 

D. Epic I Engineering Services, and 
E. Epic! Engineering Service, LLC. 
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The tax investigation revealed that the assumed names and business entities created by 
Seguin conducted no business relating to engineering and electronics and provided no service 
or products. No vendors or employees were paid. No workplace was rented or purchased. No 
utilities, consultants, or contractors were paid. Consequently, no deductible business expenses 
were associated with the income that Seguin received through those entities. 

Seguin Income from Sale of Stolen Government Property 

The investigation of tax years 2010 through 2016 also revealed that Seguin earned 
income from the sale of stolen government-owned parts and equipment. As discussed below 
in the "Statement of Facts of Additional Relevant Conduct," Seguin stole government owned 
simulator equipment during 2010 2012. Seguin subsequently sold the government owned 
simulator equipment resulting in income as follows: 

Government Simulator Parts Sold to China $9,970.00 

Government Boom Simulator Parts Sales $169,800.00 

Total $179,770.00 

Seguin failed to report this income on his tax returns filed with the IRS for tax years 
2010 through 2016. 

Tax Loss to the Government 

The tax investigation concluded that Seguin failed to disclose the following income 
from bribe payments and sale of stolen government property on his tax returns for 2010 through 
2016: 

Tax Year Unreported Income 

2010 $209,418.66 
2011 $192,458.34 
2012 $294,100.00 
2013 $466,209.44 
2014 $400,000.00 
2015 $320,719.00 
2016 $552,466.00 
Total $2,435,371.44 

The additional tax due and owing by Seguin to the IRS for his failure to report this 
income is as follows: 
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Tax Year Additional Tax Due 
2010 $67,042.00 
2011 $49,178.00 
2012 $82,166.00 
2013 $137,019.00 
2014 $127,365.00 
2015 $93,490.00 
2016 $180,358.00 
Total $736,618.00 

Specific Facts Pertaining to Count One of the Information 

On April 15, 2017, the IRS received, by mail, ajoint tax return for Seguin and his wife 

for the 2016 tax year. The income reported on this joint tax return listed wages from Seguin's 
government employment, interest income, and dividend income. According to the return filed 

under penalty of perjury, Seguin and his wife had adjusted gross income of $64,325.00 in 2016. 

The 2016 tax return did not report the bribery income he received from QuantaDyn through 
his companies, Simulation Products, LLC and Epic 1 Engineering in the amount of 

$552,466.00. 

After calculating the deductions, credits and offsets, Seguin and his wife paid the IRS 

$1,280.00 for taxes owed based on the reported gross income. 

Had Seguin included the bribery income he received from QuantaDyn, his true tax 
liability would have been $181,638.00. By failing to report the bribery income Seguin caused 

a tax loss to the government in the amount of$ 180,358.00 for tax year 2016. 

Seguin now admits that on or about April 15, 2017, in the Western District of Texas 
and elsewhere, he was a resident of the Western District of Texas living near San Antonio, 
Texas and that he willfully made and subscribed an Internal Revenue Service Form 1040 
Individual Income Tax return for 2016, which was verified by a declaration that it was made 
under the penalties of perjury and which was filed or caused to be filed with the Director, 
Internal Revenue Service Center, which return he did not believe to be true and correct as to 
every material matter in that the return falsely and fraudulently reported total income on Line 
22 in an amount Seguin then and there well knew was false because he and his spouse had total 
income well in excess of that amount in 2016, in violation of Title 26, United States Code, 
Section 7206(1). 

STATEMENT OF FACTS of ADDITIONAL RELEVANT CONDUCT 

The following Statement of Facts involves relevant conduct that was not a part of Count Two of 
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the Indictment but is incorporated by reference as part of the Plea Agreement between Defendant and the 

United States, and they hereby agree and stipulate that the following information is true and accurate. 

Defendant acknowledges that, had this matter proceeded to a sentencing hearing, the United States would 

have proven by a preponderance of the evidence the facts set forth below and discovered during the 

investigation: 

Summary of the Relevant Conduct 

Separate and severable, but also during the relevant period as defined in Count Two of 
the Indictment, Seguin purloined government-owned simulator equipment in violation of Title 
18 U.S.C. § 641 and sold it for personal financial gain. Seguin had a duty to use Air Force 
resources under his care and control to further the military agency's mission, not to further his 
personal lifestyle at the expense of the military agency. As described below, Seguin advertised 
and sold: 71 government owned electronics items through an online auction website for 
$27,193.24 in personal financial gain; four (4) government owned simulator components to a 
Chinese based entity for $9,990 in personal financial gain; and 24 different types of Air Force 
simulator components to a defense contractor for $202,225.50 in personal financial gain. To 
disguise the ownership of these simulator components, Seguin conspired with Co-Defendant 
Rubens W. Fiuza Lima ("Fiuza Lima") to use Fiuza Lima's company, Impex Import Export, 
LLC, and to sell the parts to a defense contractor. Fiuza Lima kept a percentage of sales 
proceeds he laundered for Seguin, and he also received an opportunity to work for Seguin 
under a contract Seguin had influence over. 

Theft and Sale of Air Force Simulator Components 

From March 2008 to 2010, Seguin went through divorce proceedings that caused him 
significant financial instability and required detailed analysis of his income and finances. To 
reduce his income, Seguin had the remaining $64,168.06 in bribes from QuantaDyn for the 
Boom Simulator contract made payable to him directly. However, to conceal these payments, 
Seguin deposited a check in his account and in another person's account. The final bribe paid 
to Seguin under the Boom Simulator contract was deposited June 5, 2008. The next bribery 
payment Seguin received was two years later, in July 2010. In order to maintain his standard 
of living during the divorce proceedings, Seguin turned to stealing Air Force owned simulator 
components and sold them online for personal gain. 

Without Seguin's supervisor's knowledge, Seguin misused his position of trust to 
obtain Air Force simulator components for the purposes of selling them through online 
auctions through eBay.com. The military agencies paid for the simulator components and 
stored them at RTD in a secure area managed by Seguin's coworker. When Seguin needed the 
components for a simulator project, he obtained them from the secure area. These components 
in Seguin's care and control were to be installed in new simulator devices and shipped to 
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RTD's customers as part of a completed simulator. When the components were no longer 
needed, or had to be excessed, Seguin was to follow military agency disposition procedures of 
new and used equipment and dispose of the items appropriately. Instead, Seguin used his 
official position of trust to exploit the lack of control and accountability of simulator 
components. Seguin took the simulator components from RTD to his apartment, listed them 
for auction on eBay.com, and personally profited from the sale. 

Seguin used his personal account with PayPal, a money service business, to receive 
$27,193.24 for selling the stolen Air Force owned new and used computer monitors, power 
supplies, amplifiers, power amplifiers, Bose brand speakers, and other electronics between 
April 1, 2008 and April 10, 2010. 

The following is a list of the 71 transactions and the amounts Seguin was paid: 

4/29/2008 Dell UltraSharp 2407 WFP (Black) LCD Monitor $459.48 
5/1/2008 Crown Amp, CP660 $375.14 
5/6/2008 Bose MB4 $931.00 
5/7/2008 Bose MB4 $56.00 
5/7/2 008 Postage costs for Bose MB4 $150.00 
5/7/2008 Dell UltraSharp 2407 WFP (Black) LCD Monitor $441.46 
5/10/2008 Bose Bi Base Speaker $250.35 
5/10/2008 Dell UltraSharp 2407 WFP (Black) LCD Monitor $424.64 
5/13/2008 Bose Bl Base Speaker $266.45 
5/13/2008 Dell UltraSharp 2407 WFP (Black) LCD Monitor $480.45 
5/14/2008 Bose BI Base Speaker $267.92 
5/17/2008 Dell UltraSharp 2407 WFP (Black) LCD Monitor $477.89 
5/21/2008 Dell UltraSharp 2407 WFP (Black) LCD Monitor $508.46 
5/28/2008 3x Bose SA3 Amplifier + shipping $350.00 
5/28/2008 Spare parts and services $400.00 
5/29/2008 BOSE SA3 Aplflier $223.00 
5/29/2008 Dell UltraSharp 2407 WFP (Black) LCD Monitor $467.00 
6/2/2008 Dell UltraSharp 2407 WFP (Black) LCD Monitor $470.21 
6/27/2008 Dell UltraSharp 2405 WFP (Black) LCD Monitor $455.21 
8/19/2008 Dell UltraSharp 2405 WFP (Black) LCD Monitor $410.78 
12/15/2008 3M M170 Touch Monitor (Black) LCD Monitor $124.12 
12/17/2008 Dell UltraSharp 2407 WFP (Gray) 24 inch LCD Monitor $372.96 
12/22/2008 Shure SM57 Professional Microphone $287.50 
12/24/2008 DelI UltraSharp 2405FPW (Gray) 24 inch LCD Monitor $339.48 
12/26/2008 Dell UltraSharp 2709W Monitor $636.88 
1/5/2009 Crown Amp 660A $436.41 
1/7/2009 Dell UltraSharp 2709W Monitor $531.88 
1/23/2009 Dell UltraSharp 2709W Monitor $638.68 
1/25/2009 Dell UltraSharp 2709W Monitor $558.68 
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1/28/2009 Dell UltraSharp 2709W Monitor $569.59 
2/3/2009 Dell UltraSharp 2709W Monitor $583.03 
2/14/2009 Dell UltraSharp 2709W Monitor $549.03 
3/8/2009 Dell UltraSharp 2709W Monitor $575.11 
5/6/2009 Dell UltraSharp 2709W (Black) LCD Monitor $619.13 
5/13/2009 Dell UltraSharp 2408WFP 24 inch LCD Monitor $404.50 
5/15/2009 Dell UltraSharp 2408WFP 24 inch LCD Monitor $401.75 
5/20/2009 Dell UltraSharp 2408WFP 24 inch LCD Monitor $424.91 
6/5/2009 Dell UltraSharp 2709W (Black) LCD Monitor $597.76 
6/26/2009 Dell UltraSharp 2709W (Black) LCD Monitor $597.44 
7/9/2009 Bose Panaray 302TM A Main / Stereo Speaker $249.93 
7/12/2009 Bose Panaray 302TM A Main / Stereo Speaker $244.74 
8/13/2009 Bose 161 Speakers (I pair) $111.42 
8/16/2009 Bose 161 Speakers (1 pair) $1 15.66 
8/17/2009 Dell UltraSharp 2408 WFP 24 inch LCD Monitor $423.27 
8/17/2009 Sony BRA VIA KDLV4OXBRI 40 in. HDTV LCD TV $845.10 
11/9/2009 Dell U2410 Monitor $333.34 
11/12/2009 Dell UltraSharp 2707 WFP 27-inch Wide-Screen Flat $443.83 
11/16/2009 Crown Amp XS900 $278.64 
11/16/2009 Dell Monitor, WFP3007-HC, 30 inch LCD $727.64 
11/18/2009 Dell Monitor, WFP3007-HC $660.00 
11/19/2009 Crown Amp XLS2O2 $145.93 
11/21/2009 Crown Amp 660A $129.04 
11/26/2009 Lambda ZUP Series 6-33 DC Power Supply $233.43 
12/4/2009 Lambda ZUP Series 6-33 DC Power Supply $233.43 
12/5/2009 Buffalo LinkStation Quad 2 TB $317.12 
12/5/2009 Marantz PMD57O Compact Flash MP3/Wav Recorder $316.52 
12/8/2009 Buffalo LinkStation Quad 2 TB $319.61 
12/12/2009 ViewSonic VX2233WM Monitor $147.24 
12/13/2009 Buffalo LinkStation Quad 2 TB $361.25 
12/15/2009 Lambda ZUP Series 6-33 DC Power Supply $120.33 
12/18/2009 ViewSonic VX2233WM Monitor $133.36 
1/19/2010 Lambda ZUP Series 6-33 DC Power Supply $132.75 
2/15/2010 ViewSonic VX2233WM Monitor $126.82 
2/23/2010 Lambda ZUP36-6 Power Supply $250.15 
2/24/20 10 Lambda ZUP36-6 Power Supply $214.25 
3/3/20 10 Lambda ZUP36-6 Power Supply $180.50 
3/10/2010 BOSE, Campanion 5 Speakers $314.70 
3/13/2010 BOSE, Acoustimass 5 Series III Speakers $366.65 
3/17/20 10 CROWN 660A Amplifer $294.95 
3/18/2010 BOSE, Acoustimass 5 Series III Speakers $328.86 
4/10/20 10 Dell Ultrasharp LCD Monitor, 3008 WFP $978.50 

Total: $27,193.24 
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Seguin represented the items to buyers as new, never opened, and disguised the 
government's ownership interest by advertising he purchased the items in a "lot sale." 
Seguin's financials and email communications reflected he engaged in one-sided transactions 
in selling the stolen simulator components through eBay.com. There was no documentation 
in Seguin's financial reports to support he purchased any of the products with his personal 
funds. To the contrary, Seguin's finances reflected he used the proceeds of the simulator 
component sales to fund his lifestyle with his new wife until QuantaDyn was able to start 
paying him bribes in July 2010. 

Sale of Simulator Components to Chinese Company 

In October 2009, Seguin, in his program manager capacity at RID, stole simulator parts 
identified by their model numbers, IDX 2500 IGR, and IDX 2500 IGC. The parts were high 
powered computing devices used in a simulator device. Seguin intended to list the parts for 
sale through his eBay.com account for $20,000. 

On December 3, 2009, in furtherance of the scheme to sell the stolen "IDX 2500 Spares 
From Randolph AFB", Seguin received an email identifying a representative from a Chinese 
firm in Hong Kong who was interested in purchasing four high power simulator parts, IDX 
2500 CC3-1, 1DX2500 IGR, IDX 2500 IGC, and one rack fan assembly for $20,000. By 
December 8, 2009, the Chinese representative was no longer interested in buying the simulator 
parts. 

On January 7, 2010, Seguin contacted the Chinese representative and offered to sell all 
the parts for $10,000. The Chinese representative accepted Seguin's offer and wired $9,970 
from a Chinese bank to Seguin's bank account at a credit union in San Antonio, Texas. By 
January 22, 2010, Seguin shipped four separate packages containing the "IDX 2500 Spares 
From Randolph AFB" through a U.S. based shipping company to the Chinese representative 
in Hong Kong. 

Sale of BOSS Production Contract Parts 

Beginning in 2012, Seguin conspired and agreed with Fiuza Lima in violation of 18 

U.S.C. § 1956(h), to commit an offense against the United States, specifically money 
laundering, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1957. Seguin and Fiuza Lima agreed that, having 
devised a scheme and artifice to obtain money by way of knowingly engaging in a monetary 
transaction from stolen Air Force owned simulator components valued greater than $10,000, 
they would, with intent to defraud, transmit and cause to be transmitted electronically in 
interstate and foreign commerce certain information for the purpose of executing their scheme 
and artifice. 

The purpose of the conspiracy was to enrich the Conspirators at the expense of the 
military agencies that owned the simulator components. In return for laundering the proceeds, 
Fiuza Lima, who was unemployed at the onset of the conspiracy, was to receive a percentage 
of the laundered proceeds and future employment under the contracts Seguin had influence 
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over. Seguin used his influence to persuade Prime Contractor A and Prime Contractor B to 
provide employment opportunities to Fiuza Lima under the TDIT and ID-I contracts, 
respectively. An essential element of this scheme was the influence Seguin wielded as a 
program manager over Prime Contractor A, Prime Contractor B, and projects that the simulator 
components derived from. 

In May 2012, under the TDIT contract, Task Description 114 (TD-1 14), Prime 
Contractor A subcontracted work to QuantaDyn at Seguin's direction, as described in Count 
Two of the Indictment. TD-1 14 required QuantaDyn to remove, disassemble, salvage, and ship 
two (2) boom simulators from Altus Air Force Base, Oklahoma, to RTD. The boom simulators 
to be disassembled and salvaged were the prototype models the Air Force paid QuantaDyn to 
design and build under the Boom Simulator contract, as described in Count Two of the 
Indictment. By the end of June 2012, Prime Contractor A informed the Air Force the boom 
simulators, "...have been removed, disassembled, and the salvageable items have been shipped 
to the customer's location on Randolph AFB, Texas. Unusable components have been recycled 
or disposed of." 

The salvaged boom simulator parts, including new and used parts needed to maintain 
the two (2) boom simulator prototypes at Altus Air Force Base, were in Seguin's custody and 
control at RTD. The boom simulator parts were interchangeable with the simulators that were 
to be produced and delivered under the BOSS Production contract. 

On June 8, 2012, Prime Contractor C was awarded the BOSS Production contract to 
produce and deliver 17 full sized boom simulators and 17 tabletop sized boom simulators 
called "Micro Boss" simulators to an Air Force agency. Although Seguin was not a part of the 
BOSS Production contract's source selection evaluation team, he had access to sensitive 
information in his role as a program manager. Prior to the award, Seguin assisted Bolduc and 
QuantaDyn in their efforts to compete against Prime Contractor C to win the BOSS Production 
contract. Seguin shared sensitive government information such as correspondence between 
QuantaDyn's competitors and government contracting officials, "BOSS QandA-Forms," and 
government cost estimates for Micro Boss simulator assembly. Seguin shared the information 
with Bolduc and another QuantaDyn executive. 

After QuantaDyn lost the BOSS Production contract, Seguin decided to sell the 
salvaged boom simulator parts to Prime Contractor C and devised a plan with Fiuza Lima to 
do so. Seguin photographed the salvaged boom simulator parts at RID and compiled them 
into a list. 

On June 29, 2012, Seguin informed Fiuza Lima of their plan and intent to sell the 
government's boom simulator parts to Prime Contractor C. Seguin sent the email from Texas 
to Fiuza Lima in Georgia and wrote the parts "where [sic] left over from a [sic] older order that 
was for a trainer called the Boom Operator Weapons System Trainer (BOWST). All Parts will 
fit in the Boom Operator Sustainment System Trainer (BOSS)." The plan was for Fiuza Lima 
to portray himself to Prime Contractor C as the "middle man" facilitating the transaction in 
exchange for 14 percent of the sales proceeds. Seguin provided the plan to Fiuza Lima in the 
following five step list: 
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1. If they purchase it. {A]skfor a Purchase Order. 
2. 1 will ship the items[.] 
3. Will send them an invoice. 
4. They pay you. 
5. You send payment to me. 

On the same date, in a separate email, Fiuza Lima provided his company's logo to Seguin. 
Seguin affixed the logo at the top of the parts lists to make the list appear as though it came 
from Fiuza Lima's company. 

Seguin knew he planned to sell valuable government owned boom simulator parts to 
Prime Contractor C and he understood the government was paying Prime Contractor C to 
acquire the parts in furtherance of the BOSS Production Contract. Fiuza Lima, who was 
collecting unemployment benefits at the time, understood he was going to get paid for using 
his company, company logo, and company bank account to facilitate the sale and send the 
proceeds on to Seguin. 

On June 29, 2012, Seguin sent an email to a Prime Contractor C representative and 
Fiuza Lima in furtherance of the conspiracy. The part's list (containing Impex Import Export 
LLC's logo) and photographs of the parts Seguin took at RTD were attached to the email. 
Seguin informed Prime Contractor C that the government planned to purchase the spare parts 
for a different simulator program, but that program "ran out of money" before the government 
could purchase them from Fiuza Lima. Seguin also identified all the parts listed in the email 
attachments as "new," except for one. Seguin wrote Fiuza Lima was the "middle man" for 
previous failed purchase and provided Fiuza Lima's business name and contact information. 

By August 15, 2012, Prime Contractor C enlisted the assistance of a company in 
Livonia, Michigan and the Livonia, Michigan based company communicated with Seguin 
regarding the boom simulator parts Fiuza Lima had for sale. In an effort to expedite the sale, 
Seguin informed the Livonia, Michigan company the parts were still available, however, 
Fiuza Lima had two calls asking about the parts. Seguin further stated in an email, "This 
would give you a good jump forward in your production so you dont [sic] have to wait for 
parts to be manufactured." 

By November 4, 2012, Fiuza Lima entered a sales agreement/purchase order to sell the 
boom simulator parts to the Livonia, Michigan company for $202,225.50. To facilitate the 
transaction, Fiuza Lima completed the necessary tax and vendor information forms and 
provided his financial account information to the Livonia, Michigan company. Seguin and 
Fiuza Lima shipped the simulator parts from Texas to Michigan through a commercial 
logistics provider. 

On November 19, 2012, a $202,225.50 check from the Livonia, Michigan company 
was deposited into Impex Import Export LLC's bank account. Once the check cleared and 
the funds were available for withdrawal, Fiuza Lima laundered $169,800 of the proceeds from 
Impex Import Export LLC, to Seguin's company, Simulation Products. On November 30, 
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2012, Fiuza Lima obtained two cashier's checks made payable to Simulation Products in equal 
amounts of $56,600, and he wired $56,600 to Simulation Product's account in San Antonio, 
Texas. Fiuza Lima kept $32,425.50, which was 16.0 percent of the proceeds, a little more 
than the 14 percent Seguin initially proposed in his June 29, 2012 email. 

Seguin Secured Employment for Fiuza Lima 

While working to sell the boom simulator parts to Prime Contractor C, Seguin worked 
behind the scenes with Prime Contractor A and Prime Contractor A's subcontractor to arrange 
an employment opportunity for Fiuza Lima. Seguin planned to steer work and funding to 
Prime Contractor A through the TDIT contract to pay for Fiuza Lima's position. Seguin 
suggested to Contractor A and its subcontractor a salary range and start date for Fiuza Lima 
despite knowing Seguin had no privity of contract or standing to instruct any government 
contractor on employment matters. On an unknown date, Fiuza Lima was contacted by an 
unknown person and was "invited to work" at RID under the TDIT contract. 

On September 25, 2012, GSA made a modification to the TDIT contract, adding ID- 
215, valued at $5,899,178. As part of this contract modification, Prime Contractor A would 
provide onsite personnel at Randolph AFB, Texas, which included the position for Fiuza 
Lima. In addition to the onsite personnel, TD-215 also included funding and work related to 
the production of training simulators. 

On or about September 23, 2012, Fiuza Lima moved from Georgia to an apartment in 
San Antonio, TX so he could report to work with Seguin at RTD. As an employee under 
Prime Contractor A and the TDIT contract, Fiuza Lima continued to work with Seguin to sell 
government owned boom simulator parts to Prime Contractor C. 

Fiuza Lima continued to live in San Antonio and work at RTD with Seguin. In October 
2013, after the award of the ID-i Contract, Seguin worked with a Prime Contractor B 
employee to have Prime Contractor B hire Fiuza Lima as a direct employee of the company. 
In November 2013, Prime Contractor B hired Fiuza Lima at Seguin's request. 

Throughout Fiuza Lima's employment at RTD, he had performance issues and he did 
not work well with his peers. Prime Contractor B was aware Fiuza Lima and Seguin were 
friends, Fiuza Lima rented a place from Seguin's relative, and that Prime Contractor B 
received Fiuza Lima's resume from Seguin. Prime Contractor B counseled Fiuza Lima in 
both March and July 2015, resulting in the company placing Fiuza Lima on a Performance 
Improvement Plan. 

On April 14, 2016, GSA removed Seguin from his position of influence over the ID-i 
contract awarded to Prime Contractor B. On May 6, 2016, Prime Contractor B notified Fiuza 
Lima it terminated Fiuza Lima's employment due to a lack of billable work that matched 
Fiuza Lima's skill set. Days later, Fiuza Lima moved back to his home in Georgia. 
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Resulting Financial Harm to the United States 

As a result of the criminal acts described above, the United States experienced the 
following financial losses: 

Government Simulator Parts Sold on eBay.com $27,193.24 

Government Simulator Parts Sold to China $9,970.00 

Government Boom Simulator Parts Sales $202,225.50 

Total $239,388.74 

We are counsel for Defendant, Keith Alan Seguin. We have fully explained to Defendant all of 
Defendant's rights with respect to the pending criminal charge(s). We have carefully reviewed this 
plea agreement in its entirety with Defendant and provided Defendant with our best professional 
advice. In our opinion, Defendant's decision to enter into this plea agreement is made freely, 
voluntarily, and with full knowledge of its obligations and consequences. 

DATE: 2 L1 IY)A1' , 2021. 

Kêrrisa Che 
Attorney foi 

Sam Howar 
Attorney for 

I, Keith Alan Seguin, have carefully read and reviewed the entirety of this plea agreement. After 
careful consideration and discussion with my attorneys, and fully understanding my rights with 
respect to the pending criminal charge(s), I freely and voluntarily agree to the specific terms and 
conditions of the plea agreement. 

DATE:i! /O?f ,2021. 

Keith Alan Seguin ' 
Defendant 

Factual Basis for Guilty Plea - Keith Alan Seguin Page 35 of 35 

Case 5:19-cr-00788-DAE   Document 124   Filed 05/27/21   Page 35 of 35


